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	#
	Question
	Response

	
	General
	

	1	
	How do I obtain a copy of the RFP?
	The proposal can be downloaded from the Minnesota Department of Commerce Website: http://mn.gov/commerce/businesses/request-for-proposals/. 
To download the RFP, follow the link above and click on ‘View Solicitation’ under the ‘Document Link’ column. This will open a form that applicants are required to fill out (Name and Email are all that are required). Once the form is submitted, the RFP will load to the page. You then may save a copy as a pdf to your own computer. 

	
	Eligibility
	

	2
	Who is eligible? 

	Eligible Applicants: 
Refer to the “Eligible Applicants” definition (p. 10) which states “Any home rule charter or statutory city, county, commission, district, authority, or other political subdivision or instrumentality of this state, including a sanitary district, park district, the Metropolitan Council, a port authority, an economic development authority, or a housing and redevelopment authority are eligible to submit a RFP proposal. “
NOTE: Public entities meeting the definition above are eligible to submit a proposal under this RFP. 
Eligible Program Participants: 
Refer to the “commercial business,” “industrial business,” and “small business” and “healthcare facilities” definitions (p. 10-11) to clarify the list of “eligible program participants.” 
NOTE: Businesses and healthcare facilities meeting the definition above are eligible to participate in the program, but MAY NOT submit a proposal under this RFP.  Refer to Application Process (p. 13) for specifics on how to participate in the program. 

	3
	What type of projects are eligible?
	Refer to “Eligible Projects” (p. 11) for a summary of the type of projects that are eligible under this RFP solicitation.

	4
	How is project readiness determined?
	In addition to meeting the basic eligibility requirements, applicants must demonstrate project readiness (the ability to initiate construction within 180 days of loan award). 
Project readiness will be evaluated based upon the completeness of the documentation requested in “RFP Proposal: Application and Project Checklists” (p. 13).  Proposals that demonstrate clear financial viability, are ready to promptly execute construction contracts, and have permits pending will be given priority during the evaluation process.



Addendum (07/24/15)
	
	Question
	Response

	
	Eligibility
	

	5
	Can you confirm that an entity created by a joint powers agreement among 5 counties is an eligible applicant as a unit of local government for the Rev It Up Program?
	A Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) established amongst any number of local units of government would be eligible to submit a Rev It Up RFP proposal, as long as the following criteria were met: 
1.	The participants to the JPA individually must meet the definition of an “eligible applicant” (p. 10).
2.	A fully executed copy of the JPA must be provided to Commerce as an attachment to the submitted RFP Proposal. 
3.	Each local unit of government participating in the JPA shall comply with all other programmatic requirements of the Rev It Up Program. 
4.	The local units of government (LUG) participating in the JPA shall select one representative to serve as the point of contact for all communications between Commerce and the Minnesota Management and Budget office during each phase of the RFP evaluation and bond issuance process.
* NOTE: The submitted JPA will be reviewed by the State to ensure the agreement meets all program assurances.  If the related RFP proposal is deemed an eligible project for financing under the Rev It Up Program, additional obligations relating to the project scope, implementation, and payback terms, to meet individual LUG responsibilities may be are required.

	6
	Please better define initiate construction - Does releasing a request for proposal (RFP) meet your definition of initiating construction?
	No.  Releasing an RFP does not meet Commerce’s definition of initiating construction.
Rather, Commerce defines project readiness, or the ability of an eligible applicant to ‘initiate construction’, as the capacity to begin installation of energy efficiency systems or renewable energy systems proposed in an RFP proposal within 180 days of award of a loan under this program.

	
	Project Application
	

	7
	Does a retro commissioning study qualify for funding within a larger project package?
	Yes. Commerce recognizes that retro commissioning is a valid energy conservation measure under the broader Energy Efficiency category. Submitted retro commissioning studies will be evaluated to determine compliance with the request for information to be provided in Appendices A.2 – Energy Efficiency System Project Checklist – Energy Audit Report.
Essential to any successful RFP proposal will be the ability of the applicant to articulate a projects scope of work, demonstrate its readiness to execute construction, and the security to be used to pay back the loan.
* NOTE: Additional criteria used to evaluate RFP proposal eligibility, including “Programmatic Eligibility Criteria” (p.9) and information solicited in the “Appendix A – Application Information Checklists by Project Technology” (p. 19 – 30).  Commerce will use the additional information provided to evaluate and score RFP proposals.

	8
	Can multiple individual PV systems exceed the stated 250kW’s?
	The RFP does not place a limit on the size of proposed PV systems.  However, eligible projects must meet all state regulatory and utility rules regarding the size and ownership requirements.

	
	Financing Structure
	

	9
	How will the MNDOC structure the financing terms?
	Eligible applicants are asked to indicate on their program application the loan term they are seeking.  Loans under this program shall be structured for a minimum of 15 years.   The maximum loan term under this program may not exceed 25 years. 
In the event an applicant requests a term shorter than 15 years, Commerce may shorten the loan period to no less than five years if deemed necessary and feasible.

	
	General
	

	10
	What was the intent of this program and please explain why this structure was selected.
	The intent of the program is to leverage Commerce’s technical expertise to evaluate RFP proposals seeking financing to invest in energy efficiency and/or renewable energy systems, coupled with the bonding authority of Minnesota Management and Budget to provide public entities, businesses, or healthcare facilities access to capital in the form or revenue bonds.  In concept, the program enables eligible applicants to submit projects that generate sufficient revenues in the form of energy and operational savings, energy generation, or increased productivity to generate sufficient revenue to cover the debt servicing costs.
The structure of the program is based upon Minnesota Statute 216C.145 & 146 – Community Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy Loan Program. Under these statutes, the Minnesota Legislature provided Commerce with the authority to issue up to $100 million in revenue bonds, of which up to $20 million shall be reserved for community energy efficiency and renewable energy projects taking place in small businesses and public buildings; with the balance of funding authority reserved to provide loans or other aids to industrial or commercial businesses or healthcare facilities for cost-effective energy efficiency projects or to install renewable energy systems.


Addendum (08/03/15)
	
	Question
	Response

	
	Interest Rate
	

	11
	How will the interest rate be set?
	The rate is to be set by the underwriter at the time the bonds are sold.

	12
	What will the interest rate be?  
	It will be dependent on credit and term.

	13
	Will the interest rate be lower than 3%?
	It will be dependent on credit, term and the current market.
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